VILLAGE OF DOWNERS GROVE ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS MINUTES September 26, 2018

CALL TO ORDER:

Chairperson (Ch.) Michael McCann called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.

ROLL CALL:

Present: Ms. Eberhardt, Mr. Frost, Mr. Maier, Mr. Steffes, Ch. McCann

Absent: Mr. Werner A quorum was established.

Staff: Flora Ramirez, Village Planner, Stan Popovich, AICP, Director of

Community Development

Also present: Don Rickard, 4735 Main St., Downers Grove, IL

Amy Gassen, 5320 Benton Ave., Downers Grove, IL David Johnson, 5336 Blodgett, Downers Grove, IL

Mr. Michael Faust, 5335 Blodgett Avenue, Downers Grove, IL Robert Jankovic, 5333 Benton Avenue, Downers Grove, IL David Johnson, 5336 Blodgett Avenue, Downers Grove, IL

Doug Sandberg, 6728 N. Seeley Avenue, Chicago, IL

APPROVAL OF MINUTES – May 23, 2018

A Motion was made by Mr. Maier and seconded by Ms. Eberhardt to accept the minutes as presented.

AYES: Mr. Maier, Ms. Eberhardt, Mr. Frost, Mr. Steffes, Ch. McCann

NAYS: None

The Motion carried unanimously.

MEETING PROCEDURES:

Ch. McCann asked those in attendance to silence their phones for the duration of the meeting. He then reviewed the procedures to be followed during the public hearing, noting that there was one petition before the Board for consideration. He verified with Staff that the proper notifications had been made regarding posting of the petition, and noted that members of the Zoning Board of Appeals have had an opportunity to review the materials provided by Staff and in some cases have visited the site in question. In order for a requested variation to be approved there must be a majority of four votes in favor of approval. Ch. McCann called upon anyone intending to speak before the Board on the Agenda item to rise and be sworn in, as the public information portion of the meeting is an evidentiary hearing and comments made during this portion of the meeting are considered testimony. He explained that Staff would make its presentation first, followed by comments by the Petitioner. If anyone in the audience wishes to speak either in favor of or in opposition to the petition, they would have the opportunity to do so following the Petitioner's

presentation. When the public participation portion of the meeting is closed, the Board will deliberate on the information provided and vote to either approve or deny the petition.

18-ZBA-0005: A petition seeking a zoning exception to vertically extend two non-conforming walls for a second story addition. The property is currently zoned R-2, Residential Detached House 2. The property is located 70 feet to the south of the intersection of Blodgett Avenue and Summit Street, commonly known as 5335 Blodgett Avenue, Downers Grove, IL (PIN 09-08-417-011). Michael and Michelle Faust, Petitioners and Owners.

Staff Presentation:

Village Planner Flora Ramirez stated that the petitioners are requesting two zoning exceptions at property located at 5335 Blodgett Avenue in order to construct a second floor addition to the existing home. She displayed a photo of the site and plat of survey which showed that the northernmost wall is set back 4.81 feet at the west end, and 5.42 feet at the east end from the north property line where a 7-foot interior side yard setback is required. In addition, the westernmost wall is set back 33.52 feet at the north end, and 33.44 feet at the south end, where a 35-foot setback is required from the west property line. She pointed out on the slide display where the setbacks would fall if the property were conforming. Ms. Ramirez displayed the side and front elevations depicting the required setbacks, and the sections of the addition that do not comply with the requirements.

With regard to the addition, there are no proposed windows within the non-conforming north vertical wall extension. The windows permitted on the west vertical wall extension allow views onto the public right-of-way and not onto an abutting lot occupied by a detached house.

Ms. Ramirez noted that in reviewing the Standards for Approval, Staff has found that the requested exceptions meet the standards and criteria for approval. She said that the exceptions are consistent and relevant to the purpose and intent of the Downers Grove Zoning Ordinance and the Comprehensive Plan. She reviewed Section 28.12.080.G Standards and Review Criteria of the Zoning Ordinance, and Section 28.11.040.C.2 Alterations and Expansions of the Zoning Ordinance, referencing pages 2-4 of Staff's report dated September 26, 2018 and titled 18-ZBA-0005, 5335 Blodgett Avenue.

A question was raised regarding windows on the second-story addition. Ms. Ramirez responded that the window on the west vertical wall extension is permitted because it allow views onto the public right-of-way and not onto an abutting lot occupied by a detached house.

Ms. Eberhardt said she noticed that the building to the north of the subject site was taller and asked how close it is to the property line and whether it was nonconforming as well. Ms. Ramirez said they looked at the setbacks and how they affect the proposal. Ms. Eberhardt said that she is concerned that the space between the buildings appears to be narrow.

Mr. Steffes inquired about the historic setback and whether the building was conforming at the time it was built. Ms. Ramirez said that in the Village there are a handful of nonconforming structures. She is not sure what the requirements were of the Zoning Ordinance in place at the time the building was constructed.

Ms. Eberhardt asked whether there are windows on the neighboring house, and Ms. Ramirez said she was not certain.

Petitioner's Presentation

Mr. Michael Faust, 5335 Blodgett Avenue, owner of the property and petitioner, said he and his wife recently moved back to Downers Grove. They have three children enrolled in Whittier Elementary School. The Fausts are excited about making the proposed enhancements to their home, and are pleased that the immediate neighbors are in favor of the planned addition to the property. Their proposed plans for the expansion utilize the existing walls thereby encroaching on the current setback requirements of the property. The home will reflect the Victorian Bungalow style of the home that fits within the Randall Park neighborhood. They want to provide some diversity and style to the houses on their block.

In response to a question concerning building height, Staff stated that is not part of the petition. The petition relates to the vertical zoning exceptions necessary for the construction of a second floor addition on the property utilizing the existing walls.

Mr. Sandberg, architect for the petitioner, noted the height of the existing house would be raised be approximately seven feet on the north side of the expansion.

Mr. Faust said they have shown their immediate neighbors the plans for the addition, answered their questions, and the neighbors approved of the plans and are eager to see the construction begin. They did not speak with the neighbors across the street.

David Johnson, who lives directly across from the subject property, said that the only window on the property to the north that would face the newer home would be on the side of the house. Someone else said that there is also a basement window. Mr. Johnson said he has no objections to the proposed addition.

There being no further questions for the Petitioners or Staff, Ch. McCann closed the public portion of the hearing.

Board's Deliberation

Ms. Eberhardt said there were photographs in the file that show the surrounding houses a bit better. She referenced a window shown in one of the photos.

Ch. McCann said that there is some likelihood that buildings might be a bit closer than normal. He noted that neighbors did not object to the plans presented and that means a lot. He reviewed the history of the changes made to the Zoning Ordinance. He said he thinks this is a good thing for the community and is pleased to see the renovation being made. Somewhere in the code you can have a window even on an extension such as this, but you simply can't see through it. The

3

skylights are a nice compromise. The reality of the petition is that they are not encroaching any more and will maintain the same footprint.

Ms. Eberhardt noted her only reservation would be the north line of the proposed addition. Ch. McCann noted the ZBA had allowed transom windows abutting adjacent properties but in this case, the only windows are the skylights.

There being no further discussion or comments among the Board members, Ch. McCann called for a Motion on the petition.

Mr. Maier moved, seconded by Mr. Steffes, that in case 18-ZBA-0005 the Board approves the request for two exceptions as recommended by Staff with the following condition:

The vertical wall exceptions shall substantially conform to the Staff report and architectural drawings prepared by Sandberg Architecture and Design Inc., dated August 20, 2018 except as such plans may be modified to conform to the Village codes and ordinances.

AYES: Mr. Maier, Mr. Steffes, Ms. Eberhardt, Mr. Frost, Ch. McCann

NAYS: None

The Motion passed unanimously.

New Business:

Stan Popovich, Director of Community Development, introduced new Village Planner, Flora Ramirez, who joined the Staff several months ago. Rebecca Leitschuh has moved with her family down to Champaign-Urbana. He added that Jason Zawilla has been hired to fill Ms. Leitschuh's position.

Director Popovich said there might be one more exception and one variance coming before the Board before year's end.

There being no further questions or comments Ch. McCann called for a Motion to Adjourn.

Adjournment

Ms. Eberhardt moved, seconded by Mr. Maier to adjourn the meeting. All in favor. The Motion passed unanimously by voice vote.

Ch. McCann adjourned the meeting at 7:30 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Tonie Harrington Recording Secretary (transcribed from mp3 recording) MIN 2018-7983 Page 5 of 6

DOWNERS GROVE PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING OCTOBER 24, 2018, 7:30 P.M. LIBRARY MEETING ROOM

MINUTES

- 1. Call to Order. President Graber called the meeting to order at 7:30 p.m.
- 2. **Roll Call**. Members present: Trustee Swapna Gigani, Trustee David Humphreys, Trustee Kim Stapleton, President Jonathan Graber. Absent: Trustee Carissa Dougherty.

Also present: Director Julie Milavec, Assistant Director Jen Fredericks, Executive Assistant Katelyn Vabalaitis, Facilities Manager Ian Knorr, Friends of the Library President Joni Hansen, Downers Grove Public Library Foundation Treasurer Ed Pawlak, Bob St. Mary of Elara Engineering.

- 3. **Welcome to Visitors**. President Graber welcomed visitors and thanked them for their interest in the library.
- 4. **Approval of Minutes**. It was moved by Humphreys and seconded by Gigani THAT the Minutes of the September 26, 2018 Regular Monthly Meeting be approved as presented. Motion passed by voice vote.

5. Financial Matters.

- a. <u>September 2018 Financial Report</u>. Milavec presented the report. The library is doing great with an excellent year-end outlook. Milavec noted that the iPromoteU invoice covers both shirts for maintenance staff and Bookology giveaway bags. The ServiceMaster invoice for mold remediation was for the wall between the staff room and Access Services department that had the water leak.
- b. October 2018 Invoices. President Graber noted that the payroll report included in the Board packet was not totaled properly. The September payroll total should be \$199,684.12.

It was moved by Humphreys and seconded by Stapleton THAT the payment of October 2018 capital replacement invoices totaling \$3,184.20, the payment of October 2018 operating invoices totaling \$102,886.57, the acceptance of October 2018 credit memos totaling \$6.00, and the ratification of September 2018 payrolls totaling \$199,684.12 be approved. Roll call: Ayes: Gigani, Humphreys, Stapleton, Graber. Nays: None. Abstentions: None.

6. **Public Comment on Agenda Items**. President Graber invited comment. There was none.

7. **Public Comment on Other Library Business**. President Graber invited comment. Joni Hansen announced that the Friends of the Library Book Sale begins Friday, October 26 and goes through the weekend. She hopes everyone stops by and tells their friends.

8. New Business.

a. Personnel Policy Draft. The library's attorney has the current draft of the policy and will be unable to get it vetted in time for the November Board meeting. The policy will be on the agenda for the December meeting. There are three major changes. Vacation time will be split out by part-time, IMRF qualified staff and part-time, non-IMRF staff. The recommendation is to have this take effect on January 1, 2019 when the annual accruals are handed out. The second proposed change is to remove the sick leave bank. It has never been used during Milavec's tenure. The third change is to extend the general leave of absence to 12 weeks. Final formatting, numbering, and margins will happen in the final draft.

9. Unfinished Business.

a. <u>2019 HVAC</u>, <u>Boilers</u>, <u>and Controls Project Release to Bid</u>. Bob St. Mary of Elara Engineering outlined the details and pricing of the project. The project is on schedule so far and Bob discussed the rest of the timeline.

It was moved by Stapleton and seconded by Gigani THAT the 2019 HVAC, Boilers, and Controls Project be released to bid. Roll call: Ayes: Gigani, Humphreys, Stapleton, Graber. Nays: None. Abstentions: None.

10. **Library Director's Report**. Milavec presented the report. Carissa Dougherty was officially appointed to the Library Board in October. Due to prior commitments, she will be sworn in at the December meeting. She is scheduled for orientation with Milavec on November 2. Milavec thanked Ed Earl for his service to the library. His departure leaves an unexpired term and Milavec believes a new trustee will be appointed at the November 13 Village Council Meeting. The 2018 construction project begins on November 5. Final preparations will take place next week. Milavec noted that the September circulation statistics are up by 16,000 items from last September.

11. Trustee Comments and Requests for Information.

Trustee Humphreys commented that displays and information signs about the construction project would be nice. Milavec commented that the PR department is already working on it and will have signage for each area of construction.

12. **Adjournment**. President Graber adjourned the meeting at 8:10 p.m.